The Charles Wesley WILLIAMS  family
As per Mrs. Marvin Smitherman

With additions provided by Scott O. Fraser

Charles Wesley WILLIAMS was the fifth child of William WILLIAMS (1774-1840) and his wife Elizabeth ALLISON (1783-1850).  He was born in March 25, 1813, in Belfast, Marshall County, Tennessee, where his parents had finally settled in 1808, after several stops along their way from Granville County, North Carolina.

Young Charles Wesley grew up in Belfast and was educated in the common schools close by.  He received training in civil engineering from a Scotchman, James Brown.  All of his life he was an avid reader.

When he was twenty-one years old he set out on his own, selecting Pontotoc, Mississippi as his destination and “selling goods” as his occupation.

After the Chickasaw Cession Congress passed an act authorizing the survey of the new territory and Charles Wesley WILIAMS was chosen as one of the engineers for the job.

In June, 1837, he married Mary Lefterich BOONE (1817-1858), who was called Polly.  She was the oldest child and only daughter of Reuben Holman BOONE and Fineta REECE.  The BOONES had come as the first while settlers of the area which was to be designated Old Tishamingo County and had made their home in Rienzi.  The WILLIAMS decided to locate there also.  They moved into a small log cabin which was on the unimproved land he purchased from J.N. NILES.  He farmed, sold goods, and founded a manufacturing establishment which burned soon after it came into being.

They became parents of five children:  William Lefterwich, Reuben Boone, Charles Wesley, Jr., John, and Walter.  Before Mrs. WILLIAMS death on December 24, 1858, a large two story frame house was built to replace the original cabin.  This still stands and is now known as the Roebke house.

Mr. Williams was elected county surveyor of Old Tishomingo County in the first general election after 1837 and was its second surveyor.  He was re-elected many times.  In 1839 he became Rienzi’s first postmaster. In 1870 the county was divided, Rienzi being in the newly formed Alcorn County. 
The WILLIAMS family was of the Methodist persuasion and they met with their neighbors, both Methodist and Baptist for religious services and prayer meeting.  In 1848 the Methodist men in this group decided to organize a Methodist church.  A small log house on the corner of the WILLIAMS lawn was used as a meeting house.  The Rienzi Methodist Church first appeared in the minutes of the annual conference as a charge in 1849.

A Union church was built in 1852 for members of both faiths and Mr. WILLIAMS was on the committee which supervised its construction.

In February 1848 the Mobil and Ohio Railroad was incorporated in the state of Mississippi.  Many deeds of transfer to the railroad are recorded in the courthouse, the earliest one having been dated February 16, 1852.  It states a roadbed, one hundred feet wide and free of charge, was given by Lewis RAGSDALE, R.S. PATTON, A.A. PATTON, C.W. FERRIS, Robert A. WHITESIDES, Charles Wesley WILLIAMS, R.H. BOONE, Neil MORRISON, J.P. FERRIS, John WHITESIDES, and Sam WHITESIDES.

Mr. WILLIAMS was also a heavy contractor in the building of this railroad.  The work was slow and extremely difficult and he lost a large sum of money before it was finished in January 1861.

In that same year he was elected to the state legislature where he served only one term.

During the Civil War, Union soldiers camped on his property and stole meat from his smokehouse.

After the division of Tishamingo County in 1870, Mr. WILLIAMS surveyed towns in Northeast Mississippi, including Booneville, Corinth, and Iuka.

The entire WILLIAMS family was intensely interested in agriculture and horticulture.  Mr. WILLIAMS helped to organize and State Horticulture Society and always participated in exhibitions held at county fairs.  Family tradition holds that his son, William, introduced the magnolia to the state.

Charles Wesley WILLIAMS was married again after the death of his first wife.  His second wife was a cousin of the first and a widow, Mrs. Fannie Moores MARTIN.  They had five children: James H. Julia A., Hetty, Mary Fannie, and Robert.

Mr. WILLIAMS worked in merchandizing until 1889 and died in 1894. He was buried in the Rienzi Cemetery.  Mrs. WILLIAMS lived until 1906.

